
Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 1 

 

     Town of Hinesburg 
     Development Review Board 

January 21st, 2013 
Approved 2/4/14 

 
Members Present: Zoe Wainer, Dennis Place , Kate Myhre, Greg Waples, Dick Jordan, Sarah Murphy, 
Andrea Bayer. 

Members Absent: Ted Bloomhardt. 

Also present: Peter Erb (Zoning Administrator), Alex Weinhagen (Director of Planning & Zoning) 
and Freeda Powers (Recording Secretary).  Representing Applications:  Scott Jaunich, Tyler Sterling, 
Stephanie Hainley. 

Public Present:  Jim Dumont, Jean & John Kiedaisch, Sandy Rivkin, Gill Coates, Dorothy Pellett, Mary 
Beth Bowman, Steve Giroux, Dean Grover, Catherine Goldsmith, Andrea Morgante, Maggie Gordon, 
Chuck Reiss, Anne Donegan. 

Zoe W. chaired the meeting, which was called to order at 7:33pm.   

Minutes from 1/7/14:    

Zoe W. made a motion to approve as amended the minutes from 1/7/14.   Greg W. seconded the 
motion.   Kate M. abstained as she was not present at the 1/7 meeting.  The motion was approved 
6‐0. 

 

HANNAFORD 

1.) Hannaford, Giroux Family Trust: Subdivision Revision (boundary line revision, 0.32 acres) 
to  Commerce  Park  and  Giroux  Subdivisions  to  make  proposed  Hannaford  lot  larger 
pursuant to 2012 Hannaford site plan approval. This property  is  located along Commerce 
Street & VT Route 116 in the Commercial & Village Zoning Districts. 
 

2.) Hannaford, Giroux Family Trust: Subdivision Revision (boundary line revision, 0.13 acres) 
to  Giroux  subdivision  in  order  to  modify  an  internal  lot  (between  Automotion  use  and 
Giroux Body Shop storage yard).  This property is located on the east side of VT Route 116 
in the Village Zoning District. 
 

3.) Hannaford, Aubuchon Realty Company: Site Plan Revision to Firehouse Plaza to relocate the 
Commerce Street access to  the east pursuant to 2012 Hannaford site plan approval.   This 
property is located at 20 Commerce Street in the Commercial Zoning District. 
 

4.) Hannaford,  Giroux  Family  Trust:    Site  Plan  Revision  to  the  Automotion  site  in  order  to 
reconfigure  parking  areas  given  the  related  boundary  line  adjustment  proposal.    This 
property is located at 10390 VT Route 116 in the Village Zoning District. 

 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 2 

 

Zoe W. began the meeting by acknowledging a memo submitted from James Dumont on behalf of 
Responsible Growth Hinesburg and a submission from Scott Jaunich from Downs Rachlin Martin 
PLLC & Martin Foods (applicant) in response to the Dumont memo.  In regards to these two articles, 
Zoe W. said both the Town Attorney and Staff have reviewed them and the Board has been advised 
to proceed with the applications before them.  Zoe W. asked if any Board members had any counter 
thoughts to proceeding.  Greg W. suggested allowing Mr. Jaunich & Mr. Dumont to expound upon 
their letters at this time if they wish.   
 
At this time Sarah M. recused herself from the discussion on these applications as she has made 
previous public comments. 
 
Mr. Dumont spoke to his submitted letter.  He said the Board is not reviewing the project in its 
entirety but rather in a segmented manner.  Also, as there was no statutory notice given to abutters 
for these parcels in the original application.   
 
Mr. Jaunic responded that he feels the properties involved in these applications were included at 
the onset as involved lands and he does not feel this has been a segmented review.  He has nothing 
to add to his letter. 
 
Greg W. said from where he stands on the application, there is no reason not to proceed.  Zoe W. 
thanked him and said the Board will proceed with the applications before them this evening. 
 
Stephanie Hainley spoke on behalf of the applicants and explained that while these applications are 
separately  listed,  they all are very interrelated and proposed presenting all  four at once and then 
open  up  the  discussion  to  questions.    Zoe  W.  agreed  this  would  be  appropriate  so  long  as  the 
applicant was clear on the four separate portions before them for review.   
 
Stephanie  H.  continued,  explaining  that  the  DRB  required  revisions  to  the  subdivisions  which 
involve  three  properties  (Lot  15,  Automotion,  Giroux  Storage  Yard)  and  two  applications 
(Commerce Park Subdivision Lot 15/Automotion and the Giroux Subdivision   Automotion/Giroux 
Storage Yard). 
 
The  Board  viewed  maps  of  the  lots  and  boundary  plats  via  projector.    The  Commerce  Park 
Subdivision is .32A incorporated into the Hannaford Lot as part of the agreement to accommodate 
the Farmers’ Market venue.  Stephanie H. noted the acreage changes within Lot 15 (from 4.86A to 
5.18A) and the Automotion Lot (from 1.76A to 1.31A).   She showed that the  leased area between 
the Automotion lot to the Giroux Storage Yard has gone from 30’ to 10’.   These are all within the 
conforming dimensional requirements. 
 
Stephanie H. went on to say that some residual impacts to the Automotion site included updates to 
their site plan to reflect the changes of the lot lines and to maximize the efficiency of the lot as it is 
used today.  The Board viewed lot maps of the Automotion site.  Access will remain as is from Rte. 
116  and  parking  is  increasing  overall  by  28  spaces.    There will  be  an  overall  .01A  reduction  in 
impervious  surface  area  and  the  existing  hedgerow  will  be  relocated.    Reconfiguration  of  the 
parking area will allow better circulation and increase the rear parking area.   She noted that rear 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 3 

 

parking will not always be utilized as large trucks and trailers are likely to take up multiple spaces 
at given times.  Some parking spaces to the side and back are temporarily used by neighboring uses.  
Storm water  for the site currently (where new parking  is proposed) goes to the Dark Star swales 
and to  the ditch along Rte. 116 to  the Patrick Brook.   Proposal  includes re‐grading of  the area  to 
cause all  flow to  the ditch  to  improve overall storm water quality as  it  flows over a grassed area 
rather than directly into a swale. 
 
Lastly, Stephanie H. discussed the Firehouse Plaza site plan amendment which includes relocation 
of the current driveway (aligning with existing gas station entrance to the east) to improve vehicle 
circulation and increase safety in the intersection of Commerce Street/Rte. 116.  Reseeding over the 
old driveway, planting of increased landscaping, and relocation of street trees will result in overall 
lot coverage decrease.  Replacement of two existing bollard lights will bring them into conformance 
with current zoning.   There is no change to the building, use, storm water or parking layout.   The 
Board viewed the proposed site plan via projector.   
 
Greg W.  asked  about  Lot  Coverage  at  the Hannaford  site, wondering  how  close  to  the maximum 
60% allowed the project was.   He  inquired  if absent  the  transfer of Giroux  land, does  the project 
meet  the  maximum  lot  coverage  or  is  that  transfer  needed  to  attain  lot  coverage  allowance.  
Stephanie H. said she does not know the answer to that.  Scott J. also did not recall if that was the 
reason  for  the  land  transfer.    Greg W.  said  it  is  a  theoretical  issue  of  transferring  lot  coverage 
between districts.    
 
Zoe W. noted that staff reports talked about Storm Water and that the land being transferred for the 
Farmers’ Market use is replacing an existing swale with a culvert.  Regarding the proposed grading 
in the Automotion site to push water run off towards the Rte. 116 ditch, can the applicant talk to the 
bigger picture of storm water as it relates to the overall Hannaford storm water plan.   
 
Scott  J.  noted  the  existing  swale  behind Dark  Star  property  and  along  that  property.    As  part  of 
application to the state, he said, we demonstrated that the remaining swale will provide adequate 
treatment  for  storm water  runoff.    The  Giroux  storm water  permit  does  not  require  revision  or 
amendment.  Dick J. asked about current sheet flow direction.  The applicant said the only drainage 
pattern changing will be the small area being re‐graded to sheet flow towards Rte. 116.     
 
The Firehouse Plaza site will be re‐ditched and replanted.  Since the new entrance will be slightly 
narrower,  there will be slightly  less  impervious surface area.   There will be no culvert under  the 
new  driveway.    Current  run  off  sheets  to  the  lower  culverts  and  goes  into  Patrick  Brook.    The 
applicant  said  they  do  not  anticipate  having  to  change  or  amend  the  storm  water  application 
currently in front of the state.   Zoe W. asked about the existing culvert that sometimes may back‐
flow.   The applicant said yes, that culvert is at an angle with an elevation difference of about 4‐5” 
which could potentially  cause  reverse‐flow or back‐flow during  extreme  rain  events.   He  said he 
does not think this is a likely scenario and said if it does ever back‐flow it is a very small percent of 
the total flow that might back‐flow.  That culvert is 15” and the proposal includes plans to replace it 
with  an  18”  culvert  and  to  lower  it  6” which will  increase  its  intake  capacity.    Dick  J.  asked  if  it 
makes more sense to have the runoff focused to the ditch along Rte. 116 vs. to the swale past the 
gas station. The applicant said he would guess that there is greater capacity along Rte. 116 (without 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 4 

 

the Hannaford  project). He  said with  the Hannaford  project,  he  thinks  it’s  a  toss‐up  as  to which 
direction has more capacity.   
 
Dick J. asked the applicant what his personal preference would be for the site in regards to putting a 
culvert under the new driveway.  The applicant said in his personal opinion, if it was a clean sheet, 
he would put  in  a  culvert  but  that  the  application has demonstrated  that  the  existing  swales  are 
adequate and that the application is unlikely to change.  
 
Peter E. asked  for clarification regarding  the Lot 15 bypass capacity.   He understood that only  in 
extreme events (beyond 100 yr. events)would runoff go back to the swale.     The applicant said in 
the Hannaford system, any storm event will have some bypass to the Dark Star swale.  The bypass 
pipe cannot handle all of the water at a 50yr storm event.   
 
Zoe  W.  asked  about  the  parking  portion  of  the  Automotion  proposal.    She  asked  if  there  is  a 
difference between what has been approved and what is happening on site currently?  Stephanie H. 
said yes.  Peter E. said since 2005 it has been unclear who is parking where and for what purpose.  
He said parking should be on the table and be clarified.  Stephanie H. said the site does require this 
many spaces in order to achieve the most efficient circulation.   
 
Greg W. said  it  sounds  like we’re nearly  tripling  the parking  in  the  front of  the business.   Zoe W. 
agreed and said  trees would be difficult  to  fit on  the  site as proposed and would  therefore be  in 
conflict with regulations.    Stephanie H. said landscaping trees or islands would be a disservice to 
circulation but they are amenable to access screening.  The applicant said the point was to have this 
plan supersede the 2005 plans and bring the site into conformance.  
 
Zoe W. opened the discussion to public comments or questions. 
 
John K.  spoke from the audience, saying he has concerns regarding the proposed re‐grading on the 
Automotion site.  He feels this will cause run off to flow down into the parking area and continue to 
sheet to the west. 
 
Greg W. inquired on the zoning as it relates to car sales.  Peter E. said he is unsure.  This lot may be 
considered  “grandfathered”  but  it  is  not  clear.    He  said  he would  like  the Board  to  be  clear  and 
consistent when they decide on this application as they consider what is allowed regarding parking 
and screening requirements.   Alex W. reminded those present  that  there  is no application before 
the Board tonight for New Uses, this review is for Site Plan only. 
 
Dean  G.  spoke,  as  a  member  of  Responsible  Growth  Hinesburg  and  representing  the  Dark  Star 
business.  He suggested the Board look at and discuss storm water as a whole picture.  He said after 
viewing contours and existing water flow, it would make sense in his opinion to include a detention 
pond.    The  applicant  agreed,  saying  it  makes  sense  on  the  Firehouse  Plaza  site  to  take  this 
opportunity  to  send  some  of  the  bottlenecked  storm water west.    ***  asked  about  the  proposed 
sloped  area  for  the  Farmer’s  Market  venue;  how  steep  are  they  and  are  they  impervious?    The 
applicant said  the slope  is about 6’  sloping about 1’/3’ and  is vegetated.   He said  the runoff  from 
those slopes is negligible.   



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 5 

 

 
Peter E. asked the applicant and representing parties to be careful with the language of “sheet flow” 
as it does not truly represent the reality of water flow.  The applicant agreed, but said the models 
required by the state do not allow presumed sheet flow for very long, as it is generally recognized 
that water quickly pools and flows into rivulets. 
 
Sarah  M.  spoke,  saying  she  has  taken  photographs  during  storm  events  this  past  summer 
demonstrating back‐flow in the existing culvert by Dark Star.  She said there is tremendous pooling 
in  the existing driveway area  at most  rain  events.    She  also noted  that  the  application to  change 
treatment  at  the  Automotion  lot,  which  will  now  rely  on  neighboring  lots  for  treatment  and 
wondered about  the  onus  to  treat  storm water  onsite.    She  said  the  plans  to  replace  swale with 
culvert will mean no treatment of the water on the site.  Ultimately, this decreases the treatment of 
water flow into Patrick Brook.   
 
Catherine G.  spoke as a member of  the Village Steering Committee,  regarding  the possibility of  a 
sidewalk on the east side of Rte. 116.  She said this is an opportunity to have the sidewalks as part 
of these site plans.  She also mentioned the parking in the front of Automotion.   The desire of the 
town is to improve the aesthetics of our village, our main street, which is basically Rte. 116.  Here is 
a chance to improve this aspect of the lot.     She said selling a portion of a lot to meet Hannaford’s 
goals while we allow over 20% of parking in the front of a business does not seem like a fair trade‐
off for our town.  Also, she said, the Aubuchon site is not in conformance with current landscaping 
regulations and this is an opportunity to bring that site into conformance as well.   
 
Mr. Dumont spoke from the audience, reiterating Peter E’s desire to see consistency from the Board.  
Since  land is now being used from the Village Zoning District, he feels that the Hannaford project 
should apply to the Village Zoning District standards and regulations. He added that so far in this 
process,  the  standards  from  the  Village  Zoning  District  have  not  been  applied  to  the  Hannaford 
project.   He  feels  they need to be at  this point.   One of  those standards  is  that you cannot have a 
commercial use  larger than 20,000 square feet.   Hannaford is much larger.    He said he has some 
legal arguments to buttress this view and will provide those to the Board as written submissions. 
 
Greg W. asked  the applicant  if  they would  like all  four applications heard  tonight  to be discussed 
and decided upon as one.  The applicant said the applications apply to different standards.  Greg W. 
said he was referring more to the timing of decisions.  The applicant said the Lot 15 site plan appeal 
is currently stayed by the State.  They would like the applications resolved expeditiously and they 
do  not  agree  that  the  transfer  of  land  triggers  the  applying  of  Village  Zoning  standards  to  the 
Hannaford project. 
 
Stephanie H. mentioned that the sidewalk along Rte. 116 is part of the Condition of Approval from 
2005.    That  Condition  remains  and  won’t  be  superseded  by  this  approval.      Whenever  the 
Selectboard is ready, that sidewalk should be installed by the applicant.   
 
Dick  J.  revisited  the  parking  at  Automotion  concern;  he  has  not  seen  any  explanation  for  the 
increase  of  28  parking  spaces.    Stephanie  H.  said  as  a  result  of  meetings  with  both  owners  of 
Automotion  and  the  Giroux  Storage  Yard,  this  is  the  representation  for  best  use  of  the  site with 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 6 

 

regard to circulation and flexibility.   Greg W. said that does not pay homage to the town’s aversion 
to  front  yard  parking.    He  would  like  to  see  the  reason  or  explanation  as  to  why  the  applicant 
couldn’t  reposition  things  to  address  the  current  regulations.    Scott  J.  said  the  impacts  of  this 
application are really  the  issue.    If  the Board wants screening, we are willing  to discuss  that. But 
there  is a  limit  to what  the  town can condition  the approval of  the application  that  is before you 
based  on  its  impact.    We’ve  reduced  the  impervious  area  and  circulation.    Greg  W.  said  he  is 
speaking  exclusively  to  the  parking  concerns.    He  encouraged  the  applicant  to  reconsider  the 
configuration of proposed parking.  Peter E. agreed that there is no clear description of the required 
parking  needs  for  the  Automotion  business.    He  encouraged  the  Board  to  require  this  from  the 
applicant.  Without clarity, he said, the Board and applicants cannot expect proper enforcement of 
the issue.   
 
Dennis P. asked if  the gravel parking spaces will be defined.   The applicant said no.   The space  is 
there  but  not  defined  parking  spots.    Dennis  P.  said  he  does  not  feel  that  the  applicant  actually 
intends to park 28 cars there.  The applicant said generally, no, but during some busy times of year 
yes (tire changing season, etc.).  Zoe W. said there are only 9 approved spots there currently.  How 
it’s being used and how it’s approved should be clarified.   Greg W. said if a lawyer says the Board 
has no authority under our regulations for changing what is already there, fine, but the Board has  
to be persuaded of that.   Alex W. again said that this review is for Site Plan only; this is not a use 
review.   Mr. Dumont said he disagrees with  that assessment;  if  the Board agrees with a site plan 
without  reviewing  it  thoroughly,  the  town  loses  its’  chance  to  remedy  the  issues of  concern  and 
from enforcing the non‐conformance.   
 
Peter E. encouraged the Board to consider storm water treatment specifically at the Aubuchon lot 
and  noted  there  are  no  proposals  from  the  applicant  and  reminded  the  Board  that without  that 
from the applicant, it will be up to the Board’s approval conditions to achieve.  If storm water is a 
concern to Board members, he encouraged them to require something from the applicant regarding 
treatment.    Zoe  W.  agreed  that  storm  water  plans  are  something  to  be  considered;  making 
treatment right rather than passable.   
 
Scott J. said there is no agreement with the Aubuchon lot for storm water facilities and it is unlikely 
that they would agree to something like that.  He said without such an agreement, the applicant has 
no right to consider such a proposal.  Peter E. said his intention is to treat a “hot‐spot” for the village 
run off.  It seems to him that the application includes the ramifications from the entire project, the 
whole picture and all impacts.   
 
The Board discussed their upcoming schedule and scheduled the application continuance to March 
4th.    Zoe W. made a motion  to  continue  the public hearing  to  the 3/4/14 meeting.      Greg W. 
seconded the motion.  The Board voted 6‐0.   Zoe W. made a motion to enter into deliberative 
session to discuss the Norris & Hinesburg Center, LLC. application decisions.  The Board voted 
6‐0.    Sarah  M.  rejoined  the  Board  for  the  closed  deliberative  session.    The  Board  went  into 
deliberation at 9:28pm. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 



Approved DRB Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2013  Page 7 

 

Freeda Powers‐‐‐Recording Secretary  


